
AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 

 



 Notice of Intent to Act Upon Regulation,  
Notice of Public Hearing to Solicit Comments on Proposed Regulation 

 Page 1 of 3 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 
COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

 
 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ACT UPON A REGULATION 
AND 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
TO RECEIVE COMMENTS ON THE 

ADOPTION, AMENDMENT OR REPEAL OF PERMANENT REGULATIONS 
  

The Nevada Commission on Ethics will hold a public hearing on: 
 

Wednesday, August 15, 2018 
9:00 A.M. 

 
at the following locations 

via video conference: 
 

Carson City: Las Vegas: 
Nevada Legislative Building 

Room 3138 
401 S. Carson Street 

Carson City, NV 89701 

Grant Sawyer State Building 
Room 4412 

555 E. Washington Avenue 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 

  
 
The purpose of the hearing is to receive comments from all interested persons on the 

adoption, amendment or repeal of regulations that pertain to Chapter 281A of the Nevada 
Administrative Code. 

 
The following information is provided pursuant to the requirements of NRS 233B.0603: 
 

1. The need for and the purpose of the proposed regulation. 
 
The proposed regulation reflects amendments to NRS Chapter 281A enacted by Senate 

Bill 84 of the 2017 Legislative Session (Chapter 384, 2017 Statutes of Nevada), and the provisions 
of NAC Chapter 281A, as amended in the Commission’s expired Temporary Regulation No. T03-
16, and any Commission direction thereon. 

 
2. The estimated economic effect of the regulation on the business which it is to regulate and 

on the public. 
 

a.   Both adverse and beneficial effects 
 

The Commission does not regulate any business in the State of Nevada. Its jurisdiction is 
limited to the conduct of public officers and employees of State and local government. The 
proposed regulation streamlines and clarifies the manner in which the public may file requests for 
advisory opinions and ethics complaints with the Commission and the manner in which the 
Commission processes such advisory requests and ethics complaints. Through improved 
processes, the Commission will also save operational costs. 

 
b.   Both immediate and long-term effects 

 
Please see explanation in Section 3.a above. 

 
3. A statement identifying the methods used by the agency in determining the impact on a 

small business prepared pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS 233B.0608. 



 Notice of Intent to Act Upon Regulation,  
Notice of Public Hearing to Solicit Comments on Proposed Regulation 

 Page 2 of 3 
 

 
The Commission staff analyzed whether the proposed regulation could cause any small 

business any economic burden and determined that jurisdiction of the Commission is limited to 
public officers and employees such that small businesses could not be affected. See attached 
Statement regarding Small Business Impact. 

 
4. The estimated cost to the agency for enforcement of the proposed regulation. 
 

The proposed regulation will not incur any cost for enforcement of the proposed regulation. 
To the contrary, the proposed regulation will streamline various jurisdictional and procedural 
processes and save staff time and Commission costs, including, without limitation costs of paper 
copies and mailing. 
 

5. A description of any regulations of other state or local governmental agencies which the 
proposed regulation overlaps or duplicates and a statement explaining why the duplication 
or overlapping is necessary. If the regulation overlaps or duplicates a federal regulation, 
the name of the regulating federal agency. 

 
The proposed regulation does not overlap or duplicate that of any other state, local, or 

federal government agency. 
 

6. If the regulation is required pursuant to federal law, a citation and description of the federal 
law. 

 
The proposed regulation is not required pursuant to federal law. 

 
7. If the regulation includes provisions which are more stringent than a federal regulation that 

regulates the same activity, a summary of such provisions. 
 

The proposed regulation does not include provisions which are more stringent than a 
federal regulation. 
 

8. Whether the proposed regulation establishes a new fee or increases an existing fee. 
 

The proposed regulation does not establish a new fee or increase an existing fee. 
 

Persons wishing to comment upon the proposed regulation of the Nevada Commission on 
Ethics may appear at the scheduled public hearing to provide oral testimony or may address their 
comments, data, views, or arguments, in written form to:  

 
Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson, Esq. 

Executive Director 
Nevada Commission on Ethics 

704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204 
Carson City, Nevada 89703 

 
Written submissions must be received by the Nevada Commission on Ethics on or before 

August 6, 2018. If no person who is directly affected by the proposed regulation appears to 
request time to make an oral presentation, the Nevada Commission on Ethics may proceed 
immediately to act upon any written submissions. 

 
A copy of this notice and the regulation to be adopted will be on file at the State Library, 

100 Stewart Street, Carson City, Nevada, for inspection by members of the public during business 
hours. Additional copies of the notice and regulations will be available at the Nevada Commission 
on Ethics at 704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204, Carson City, Nevada 89703, and in all counties in which 
an office of the agency is not maintained, at the main public library, for inspection and copying by 
members of the public during business hours. Copies of this notice and the proposed regulation 
will also be mailed to members of the public upon request. A reasonable fee may be charged for 
copies if it is deemed necessary. 

 



 Notice of Intent to Act Upon Regulation,  
Notice of Public Hearing to Solicit Comments on Proposed Regulation 

 Page 3 of 3 
 

Upon adoption of any regulation, the agency, if requested to do so by an interested person, 
either before adoption or within 30 days thereafter, will issue a concise statement of the principal 
reasons for and against its adoption and incorporate therein its reason for overruling the 
consideration urged against its adoption. (NRS 233B.064(2)). 

 
This notice has been sent to all persons on the agency’s mailing list for administrative 

regulations and posted at the following locations: 
 
• The Nevada Commission on Ethics at 704 W. Nye Lane, Carson City NV 89703 
• State Library and Archives at 100 North Stewart Street, Carson City, NV 89701 
• Blasdel Building, 209 E. Musser Street, Carson City 
• Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 East 9th Street, Reno 
• Grant Sawyer State Office Building, 555 E. Washington Ave., Las Vegas 
• The Nevada Commission on Ethics’ website: ethics.nv.gov 
• The Nevada Legislature’s Administrative Regulations Notices website:  

leg.state.nv.us/App/Notice/A/  
• State of Nevada Public Notice Website: notice.nv.gov  

 
This notice has also been posted at the following locations:   

 

CHURCHILL COUNTY LIBRARY 
553 SOUTH MAINE ST 
FALLON NV 89406 

DOUGLAS COUNTY LIBRARY 
1625 LIBRARY LANE 
MINDEN NV 89423 
 

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY 
720 COURT ST 
ELKO  NV  89801 
 

ESMERALDA COUNTY LIBRARY 
FOURTH & CROOK ST 
P O BOX 430 
GOLDFIELD NV 89013-0430 
 
LANDER COUNTY/BATTLE MTN 
BRANCH LIBRARY 
625 SOUTH BROAD ST 
BATTLE MTN NV 89820 
 
LINCOLN COUNTY LIBRARY 
63 MAIN ST  
PIOCHE NV 89043 
 
PERSHING COUNTY LIBRARY 
1125 CENTRAL AVE  
LOVELOCK NV 89419 
 
WHITE PINE COUNTY LIBRARY 
950 CAMPTON ST  
ELY NV 89301 

EUREKA COUNTY LIBRARY  
80 SOUTH MONROE ST 
PO BOX 293 
EUREKA NV  89316 
 
LAS VEGAS-CLARK COUNTY 
LIBRARY DISTRICT HQ 
833 LAS VEGAS BLVD NO 
LAS VEGAS NV 89101-2062 
 
MINERAL COUNTY LIBRARY 
FIRST & A ST 
P O BOX 1390 
HAWTHORNE NV 89415 
 
STOREY COUNTY 
TREASURER/CLERK’S OFFICE 
DRAWER D 
VIRGINIA CITY NV 89440  
 

HUMBOLDT COUNTY LIBRARY 
85 EAST 5TH ST 
WINNEMUCCA NV 89445 
 
LYON COUNTY LIBRARY 
20 NEVIN WAY 
YERINGTON NV 89447-2399 
 
NYE COUNTY  
TONOPAH PUBLIC LIBRARY 
167 CENTRAL ST 
PO BOX 449 
TONOPAH NV 89049-0449 
 
WASHOE COUNTY LIBRARY 
301 SOUTH CENTER ST 
PO BOX 2151 
RENO NV 89505 

http://ethics.nv.gov/
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/Notice/A/
http://notice.nv.gov/


CHERYL A. LAU, ESQ.  YVONNE M. NEVAREZ-GOODSON, ESQ. 
Chair   Executive Director 
 
KEITH A. WEAVER, ESQ. 
Vice-Chair   

STATE OF NEVADA 
COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204 
Carson City, Nevada 89703 

(775) 687-5469 • Fax (775) 687-1279 
ethics.nv.gov 

 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT REGARDING  
SMALL BUSINESS IMPACT 

(NRS 233B.0608(3)) 
 
 I, Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson, Esq., being the duly appointed Executive Director of the 
Nevada Commission on Ethics (“Commission”), do hereby certify that a concerted effort was 
made to determine the impact of the proposed regulation on small business and the information 
contained in this statement is accurate to the best of my knowledge or belief: 
 

1.  The Commission intends to adopt a proposed regulation that will amend the 
Commission’s administrative regulations set forth in NAC Chapter 281A to implement the 
amendments of NRS Chapter 281A enacted by Senate Bill 84 of the 2017 Legislative Session 
(Chapter 384, 2017 Statutes of Nevada) and the provisions of NAC Chapter 281A, as amended 
in the Commission’s expired Temporary Regulation No. T03-16. 
 

2.  The proposed regulation is not likely to: (a) impose a direct or significant economic 
burden upon a small business; or (b) directly restrict the formation, operation or expansion of a 
small business. (NRS 233B.0608(1)). 
 

3.  Commission staff analyzed whether the proposed regulation could cause small 
business any economic burden, and none of the proposals were found to directly or significantly 
affect business in Nevada. 
 
 4. The Nevada Ethics in Government Law set forth in NRS Chapter 281A (“Ethics Law”) 
does not directly govern or affect any small business in Nevada. Rather, the Ethics Law governs 
only the conduct of public officers and employees to ensure that they avoid conflicts between their 
public duties and private interests. Based on the foregoing, Commission staff concluded that the 
proposed regulation will have no effect on small business. (NRS 233B.0608(3)). 
  

5. Because small businesses are not likely to be affected by the Ethics Law or the adoption 
of this proposed regulation, no assessment of the burden or economic impact can be completed. 
Accordingly, no comment by small business has been solicited. (NRS 233B.0608(2)(a)). 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

 DATED:      3/29/18  /s/ Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson   
   YVONNE M. NEVAREZ-GOODSON, ESQ. 
 Executive Director 



AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 

 



 

Page 1 of 6  

  
STATE OF NEVADA 

COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
http://ethics.nv.gov 

 
MINUTES 

of the meeting of the 
NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

 
The Commission on Ethics held a public meeting on 

Wednesday, June 20, 2018, at 9:30 a.m. 
at the following locations: 

 
Grant Sawyer State Building 

Room 4412 
555 E. Washington Avenue 

Las Vegas, NV 89101 
 

and via video-conference to: 
 

Nevada Legislative Building 
Room 3138 

401 S. Carson Street 
Carson City, NV 89701 

 
 

These minutes constitute a summary of the above proceedings of the Nevada 
Commission on Ethics. Verbatim transcripts are available for public inspection at the 
Commission’s office located in Carson City.  
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call. 
 

 Chair Cheryl A. Lau, Esq. called the meeting to order in Las Vegas, Nevada at 9:30 a.m.  
Also present in Las Vegas were Vice-Chair Keith A. Weaver, Esq. and Commissioners Brian 
Duffrin, Barbara Gruenewald, Esq., Teresa Lowry, Esq., and P.K. O’Neill. Commissioner 
Amanda C. Yen, Esq. was excused. Present for Commission staff in Las Vegas were Executive 
Director Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson, Esq., and Commission Counsel Tracy L. Chase, Esq. 
Present for Commission staff in Carson City, Nevada was Associate Counsel Judy Prutzman, 
Esq. 
 

The pledge of allegiance was conducted. 
 

2. Public Comment.  
 
No public comment. 
 
 

 

http://ethics.nv.gov/


 

Page 2 of 6  

3. Approval of Minutes of the May 9, 2018 Commission Meeting. 
 
Commissioners O’Neill and Lowry were excused from voting on this matter as 

Commissioner O’Neill was excused from the May 9, 2018 meeting and Commissioner Lowry was 
not yet a member of the Commission during that meeting.  

 
Executive Director Nevarez-Goodson and Commissioner Duffrin noted the need for a 

correction to the minutes. The May 9, 2018 Commission Meeting minutes should reflect that 
Commissioner Duffrin abstained from voting on the approval of the April 18, 2018 meeting 
minutes. 

 
Vice-Chair Weaver moved to accept the May 9, 2018 Minutes with the correction. 

Commissioner Gruenewald seconded the motion. The Motion was put to a vote and carried as 
follows: 

 Chair Lau:    Aye  
Vice-Chair Weaver:   Aye. 
Commissioner Gruenewald:  Aye. 

 Commissioner Duffrin:  Aye. 
  

4. Discussion and consideration of Cross Motions for Summary Judgment (“Motions”) 
concerning Ethics Complaint Case No. 17-21C regarding Gerald Antinoro, Sheriff, Storey 
County, submitted pursuant to NRS 281A.710. 

 The Commission may discuss and consider the Cross Motions in a closed 
session pursuant to NRS 281A.750. 

 The Commission will take action on the Cross Motions in an open session. 
 
Chair Lau confirmed Commissioner Gruenewald reviewed this matter as a member of 

the Review Panel and would be precluded from participating in this item. Commissioner 
Gruenewald confirmed that she would not participate in the item.  

 
Appearing before the Commission in this matter was subject Gerald Antinoro, Storey 

County Sheriff and his counsel, Katherine Parks, Esq., of Thorndal, Armstrong, Delk, 
Balkenbush, and Eisinger. Appearing on behalf of the Executive Director was Associate Counsel 
Judy A. Prutzman, Esq. 

 
Chair Lau outlined that the Commission would be considering Cross Motions for 

Summary Judgment and that each party had 20 minutes to present including opening and closing 
remarks. 

 
Associate Counsel Prutzman provided a brief overview of the case for the record. 

Associate Counsel Prutzman summarized that Request for Opinion (RFO) Case No. 17-21C 
alleged Sheriff Antinoro violated the Ethics Law when he authorized the personal use of a 
meeting room in the sheriff’s office on a Saturday for him and his wife to conduct a two-hour 
visitation between his stepdaughter and her father, the requester of the RFO. She reported that 
the Review Panel determined that there was sufficient credible evidence for the Commission to 
render an opinion regarding the allegations pertaining to NRS 281A.400(2) and (7) and that the 
conduct could be appropriately addressed through corrective action under the terms of a deferral 
agreement. However, Sheriff Antinoro declined to enter into a deferral agreement and therefore 
the matter was referred to the Commission. 

 
Associate Counsel Prutzman informed the Commission that if it was determined that 

Sheriff Antinoro violated the Ethics Law the Executive Director’s motion must be granted and 



 

Page 3 of 6  

Sheriff Antinoro’s motion denied. She pointed out that this would be Sheriff Antinoro’s second 
willful violation of the Ethics Law and the accompanying penalty was recommended to be $8,000. 
Associate Counsel Prutzman summarized the circumstances surrounding the Sheriff’s previous 
ethics law violation for the Commission involving his use of official government letterhead to 
make a personal endorsement.  

 
Associate Counsel Prutzman informed the Commission that she had additional 

confidential information for them to consider and requested a brief closed session.  
 

The Commission went into a brief closed session to hear the confidential information and 
returned to an open, public session.  

 
Counsel Parks, legal representative for Sheriff Antinoro, presented her client’s motion to 

the Commission and argued that there is no evidence in the case that the Sheriff’s wife received 
preferential treatment and that the Sheriff’s office is available to the public after the posted hours 
of operation, including weekends. She requested that the Commission grant her client’s motion 
and order summary judgment in favor of Sheriff Antinoro. 

 
Vice-Chair Weaver and Commissioners Duffrin and O’Neill asked clarification questions 

of Counsel Parks and she provided answers to their questions.  
 
Associate Counsel Prutzman presented closing remarks to the Commission and 

answered questions posed by Vice-Chair Weaver and Commissioner O’Neill. 
 
Counsel Parks presented closing remarks to the Commission and answered a question 

posed by Vice-Chair Weaver. 
 
The Commission then went into a closed session to deliberate on the motions. The 

Commission then went back into an open, public session. 
 
Vice-Chair Weaver moved to deny both motions for summary judgment and for the 

Commission to hold a hearing to determine credibility of the facts presented, specifically request 
testimony on the applicable policy, dispatch training and deputy timing of events and 
assignments as they relate to the issues in the matter including similar after-hours requests from 
the public. Vice-Chair Weaver’s motion also included direction to Commission Counsel to 
prepare an order and issue a notice of adjudicatory hearing. Commissioner O’Neill seconded the 
motion. The Motion was put to a vote and carried unanimously. 

 
5. Consideration and approval of proposed additional Bill Draft Request Concepts for 

consideration during the 2019 Legislative Session based on recommendations of the 
Executive Director pursuant to NRS 281A.240(1)(e). 

 
Executive Director Nevarez-Goodson reminded the Commission of the original BDR 

concepts previously approved by the Commission and provided an overview of her 
recommendation for additional proposed BDR concepts, explaining that the majority of the 
additional concepts were housekeeping measures and only a few proposed substantive 
changes. The following is a summary of the concepts proposed by Executive Director 
Nevarez-Goodson: 

1. Eliminate Designation of “Willful” Violations from the Ethics Law. 
2. Authorize Commission/Staff to issue a “Notice of Formal Charges” to the Subject 

of a Complaint instead of turning over the Ethics Complaint filed by the 
Requestor. 



 

Page 4 of 6  

3. Authorize an Investigation (or Preliminary Investigation) Before Notice of Formal 
Charges – No opportunity to respond at this juncture. 

4. Exempt stipulated agreements and other negotiations for deferral agreements 
from public records and OML. 

5. Authorize the Commission to decline to investigate and issue a letter in an ethics 
complaint that it initiates on its own. 

6. Clarify the 45-day timeline to “render an advisory opinion.” 
7. Confirm written opinions as precedential value – not ad hoc rulemaking. 
8. Protect confidential requestors who are public officers or employees from 

producing records relating to ethics complaints they file pursuant to a public 
records request.  

9. Allow Panel members to serve as settlement judges for proposed stipulated 
agreements or other settlement negotiations.  

10. Confirm Exemption from OML even if Subject waives confidentiality. 
11. Clarify jurisdiction in advisory context. 
12. Abstention on matters that materially affect private client representations. 
13. Cooling-Off regarding Contracts with Agency. 
14. Clarify advisory confidentiality – to entire public agency. 
15. Legal Representation of subject in complaint case. 
16. Clarify that failure to file written response to allegations should not be basis to 

refuse to participate in investigation. 
17. Deadlines for Deferral Agreements - by order of the Panel. 
18. Authorize Review Panel to dismiss a complaint and issue a Letter of Caution or 

Instruction even if it determines that just and sufficient cause exists.  
19. Define “render an opinion” or “make a determination.” 
20. Clarify confidentiality of requestor in discovery. 
21. Clarify timing of discovery – NRS 281A.755. 
22. Clarify Executive Director role in adjudicatory hearing as a party. 
23. Require the Executive Director to be an attorney. 
24. Provide process for adjudicating when a person has interfered with an 

investigation. 
25. Eliminate requirement for the Commission to treat stipulated agreements in a 

comparable manner. 
 

Executive Director Nevarez- Goodson directed the Commissioners to the report she 
provided them in regards to this item and provided additional justification for each proposal 
listed above. She answered the Commissioner’s questions in regards to her proposed 
concepts and provided clarifying information as requested.  

 
Chair Lau made a motion to approve the BDR concepts to be coordinated with the 

Governor’s Office based upon the Executive Director’s recommendation. Commissioner 
Gruenewald seconded the motion. The motion was put to a vote and carried unanimously. 
 

The Commission briefly went into a closed session to deliberate on a confidential 
advisory matter.  

 
6. Report by the Executive Director on agency status and operations and possible 

direction thereon. Items to be discussed include: 
 Codification of S.B. 84 (New NRS provisions) 
 Update regarding Proposed Regulations  
 Interim Salary Study (S.C.R. 6) Update 
 Quarterly Case Status Update 



 

Page 5 of 6  

 Education and Outreach by the Commission 
 Commission Appointments 
 Meeting Schedule 
 FY18 Budget Update 
 Upcoming Biennial Budget 

 
Executive Director Nevarez-Goodson commenced her report by welcoming newly 

appointed Commissioner Teresa Lowry, Esq. 
  

 Codification of S.B. 84 (New NRS provisions): Executive Director Nevarez-Goodson 
directed the Commissioners to newly codified NRS 281A as provided in their meeting book. She 
noted that there was a significant repeal and replacement of the provisions of NRS 281A.440 
through 281A.480, which are now located under provisions set forth in NRS 281A.670 through 
281A.790.  
 
 Update regarding Proposed Regulations: The Executive Director shared that staff has 
been working diligently on reviewing and revising the language of the proposed regulations and 
that the language has been submitted to the Legislative Council Bureau (LCB). She further 
explained that LCB has worked with her to essentially rewrite the entire chapter for the 
Commission and expressed her view that the new language will benefit both the Commission 
and anyone who requests direction from the Commission. She informed the Commission that 
the August 15 Commission meeting will also be the regulation adoption hearing.  
 

Interim Salary Study (S.C.R. 6) Update: Executive Director Nevarez-Goodson referred to 
the materials provided to the Commission in regard to this item. She noted that for purposes of 
the study, the committee determined it would review the Commission’s Executive Director 
position, the Commission Counsel position and the Associate Counsel position. She offered that 
preliminary results showed that each of the positions is underpaid from an average based on a 
national scale and the next step in the process for salary parity would be through the Governor’s 
recommended budget.  

 
 Quarterly Case States Update:  Executive Director Nevarez-Goodson summarized the 
Case Status Log which identifies all pending cases before the Commission. 
  
 Education and Outreach by the Commission: Executive Director Nevarez-Goodson 
provided an update of the ongoing efforts to increase the outreach and education to public 
employees throughout the State. She included a list of the jurisdictions throughout Nevada that 
she has provided training for this fiscal year. Commissioner O’Neill requested Commissioner 
support to encourage more outreach to the general public.  
 

Commission Appointments:  Executive Director Nevarez-Goodson commented that there 
is still one vacant position on the Commission to be appointed by the Legislative Commission. 
 

Meeting Schedule:  Executive Director Nevarez-Goodson requested that Commissioners 
reserve the third Wednesday of every month and she will let Commissioners know in advance if 
a meeting will be canceled. She also informed the Commission that there would not be a formal 
meeting in July but most likely a teleconference to address certain case deadlines. 
 
 FY18 Budget Status: Executive Director briefly summarized the current status of the 
FY18 Budget. Specifically, the Commission spent down the majority of the travel funds and will 
be requesting additional funds in the next budget to accommodate travel for staff for educational 
purposes.  
 
 Upcoming Biennial Budget: Executive Director Nevarez-Goodson informed the 
Commission that she will be requesting training funds in the new budget to allow for further 



 

Page 6 of 6  

outreach. She also disclosed that the Commission office lease is due to expire and that staff will 
be looking into a new location.  
 
 Chair Lau made a motion to approve the Executive Director’s report. Commissioner 
O’Neill seconded the motion. The motion was put to a vote and carried unanimously.  
 

7. Commissioner Comments on matters including, without limitation, identification of future 
agenda items, upcoming meeting dates and meeting procedures. No action will be taken under 
this agenda item. 
 

There were no comments from the Commissioners. 
 

8. Open Session for Public Comment. 
 

No public comment. 
 

9. Adjournment. 
 
Vice-Chair Weaver moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Gruenewald seconded 

the Motion.  The Motion was put to a vote and carried unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at 
3:40 p.m. 

 
 

Minutes prepared by:     Minutes approved August 15, 2018: 
 
/s/ Kari Pedroza  /s/ Cheryl A. Lau_________  
Kari Pedroza  Cheryl A. Lau, Esq. 
Executive Assistant      Chair 
 
/s/ Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson  /s/ Keith A. Weaver_ _____ 
Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson, Esq.   Keith A. Weaver, Esq. 
Executive Director   Vice-Chair    
  



 

Page 1 of 2  

STATE OF NEVADA 
COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

http://ethics.nv.gov 
 

MINUTES 
of the meeting of the 

NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
 

The Commission on Ethics held a public meeting on 
Thursday, June 28, 2018, at 3:30 p.m. 

at the following location: 
 

Nevada Commission on Ethics 
Suite 204 

704 W. Nye Lane 
Carson City, NV 89703 

 
 

These minutes constitute a summary of the above proceedings of the Nevada 
Commission on Ethics. Verbatim transcripts are available for public inspection at the 
Commission’s office located in Carson City.  
 

1.  Call to Order and Roll Call. 
 

 Chair Cheryl A. Lau, Esq. appeared telephonically and called the meeting to order at 3:30 
p.m. Also appearing telephonically were Vice-Chair Keith A. Weaver, Esq and Commissioners 
Brian Duffrin, Barbara Gruenewald, Esq., Teresa Lowry, Esq., Philip “P.K.” O’Neill, and Amanda 
Yen, Esq. Present for Commission staff in Carson City were Commission Counsel Tracy L. Chase, 
Esq. and Executive Assistant Kari Pedroza. Executive Director Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson, 
Esq. appeared telephonically. 
 

The pledge of allegiance was conducted. 
 

2.  Public Comment.  
 
The Chair asked for public comment. No members of the public were present. 

 
3.  Approval of proposed stipulation and order dismissing without prejudice two cases filed 

by Ira Hansen and Jim Wheeler, as plaintiffs, in the First Judicial District Court against the 
Commission on Ethics of the State of Nevada, as defendant, specifically referenced as Case No. 
15 OC 00261 1B and Case No. 16 OC 00029 1B and authorization for Commission Counsel to 
finalize form, execute and file all documents in furtherance of the dismissal of the identified cases 
and/or providing other direction relating thereto. 

 
Assemblymen Hansen and Wheeler each provided an executed waiver of any personal 

notice requirements of NRS Chapter 241 in order for the Commission to consider character, 
competence or health of a person, which waivers are included in the agenda packet. Commission 
Counsel Chase presented to the Commission the proposed stipulation and order that would lift 

 

http://ethics.nv.gov/


 

Page 2 of 2  

the stay of proceedings and dismiss the two identified Open Meeting Law cases filed in the district 
court. She informed the Commission that an ancillary appeal had recently been dismissed by the 
Nevada Supreme Court. Consequently,  the parties to the two Open Meeting Law cases agreed 
to submit  the proposed stipulation and order for dismissal, with each party to bear own costs and 
fees, to the district court for entry of an order resolving the Open Meeting Law cases, without 
prejudice. Commission Counsel Chase further explained that Commission staff received the 
Remittitur on June 26, 2018 from the Nevada Supreme Court and will reference that date in the 
stipulation. 

 
Vice-Chair Weaver made a motion to approve the proposed stipulation and order 

dismissing without prejudice the two Open Meeting Law cases and authorize Commission 
Counsel to finalize the form, execute and file documents. Commissioner Yen seconded the 
motion. The motion was put to a vote and carried unanimously. 

 
4. Public Comment. 
 

No public comment. 
 

5. Adjournment. 
 
Commissioner Yen made a motion to adjourn the public meeting. Chair Lau seconded the 

motion. The motion was put to a vote and carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:37 p.m. 
 

Minutes prepared by:     Minutes approved August 15, 2018: 
 
/s/ Kari Pedroza  /s/ Cheryl A. Lau_________  
Kari Pedroza  Cheryl A. Lau, Esq. 
Executive Assistant      Chair 
 
/s/ Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson  /s/ Keith A. Weaver_ _____ 
Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson, Esq.   Keith A. Weaver, Esq. 
Executive Director   Vice-Chair      


	20180815_NtcRegDocs.pdf
	20180329_SBIStatement.pdf
	704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204
	Carson City, Nevada 89703
	(775) 687-5469 • Fax (775) 687-1279
	ethics.nv.gov



